City of
ASHINGTON 1 ERRACE
Uk

Regular City Council Meeting
Tuesday, January 21, 2025
5249 South 400 East
Washington Terrace, UT 84405
801.393.8681

www.washingtonterrace.gov

As a public service, Council Meetings are streamed on the City of Washington Terrace YouTube channel at :

www.youtube.com/(@WashingtonTerraceCity

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PERMISSION NOTICE
By attending this meeting/event, you consent to the use of your photograph, voice, likeness, and image in broadcasts
of this meeting/event, and in subsequent productions drawn from video or audio recordings of this meeting/event, in
the sole and absolute discretion of the City of Washington Terrace. The city retains copyright for all video and audio
recordings. Video and audio recordings may not be modified, manipulated, or distributed in any way without the
express written consent of the City Manager.

1.

7.1

WORK SESSION 5:00 P.M.
Topics to include, but are not limited to:
City Council Policy and Priorities Discussion and Review

ROLL CALL 6:00 P.M.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

WELCOME

CONSENT ITEMS
5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND JANUARY 7, 2025, COUNCIL MEETING

Any point of order or issue regarding items on the agenda or the order of the agenda need to be addressed here
prior to the approval of the agenda. Minutes approved in open meeting become the official record

CITIZEN COMMENTS

This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas that are not on the agenda as part of a
public hearing. Please limit your comments to no more than 3 minutes. “Washington Terrace City is committed to
civility. We strive to act and speak with dignity, courtesy, and respect at all times. All are asked to join us, and act and
speak accordingly.”

NEW BUSINESS

PRESENTATION: TERRACE DAYS MERCHANDISE

Presentation of possible Terrace Days Merchandise that residents may pre-order.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at
801-395-8283.

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder.



8. RECURRING BUSINESS

The items in this section have been presented to the City Council in previous meetings for discussion.

8.1 MOTION/ORDINANCE 25-02: ADOPTING CHAPTER 17.86 OF THE MUNCIPAL
CODE REGULATING URBAN CHICKENS

Council may approve the adoption of the chapter concerning the allowance and regulation of urban chickens
within the city.

8.2 MOTION/RESOLUTION 25-01: RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR
2025 FEE SCHEDULE

The Council may amend the fee schedule to incorporate a fee for the licensing of urban chickens.

8.3 DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF CITY CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT FOR

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT APPLICATIONS

Approval from the Council to commit to funding the grant match required for CDBG grant year 2025
applications. The applications being considered: Victory Park Playground Improvements and Street Accessibility
and Safety Program- North End

9. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF

This is a discussion item only. No final action will be taken.

10. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

This is an opportunity for staff to address the Council pertaining to administrative items.

11. UPCOMING EVENTS
January 30™: Planning Commission Meeting (tentative) 6:00 p.m.
February 4™: City Council Work Session (5:00pm) and Council Meeting (6:00pm)
February 17%": City Offices closed in Observance of President’s Day
February 18%: City Council Work Session (5:00pm) and Council Meeting (6:00pm)

12. ADJOURN THE MEETING

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at
801-395-8283.

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder.



City of Washington Terrace

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting
Held on January 7, 2025
City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, Utah

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Jill Christiansen
Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan
Council Member Cheryl Parkinson
Council Member Jeff West

Council Member Michael Thomas
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett

City Code Enforcement Martin Nish
General Planner Tyler Seaman

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

City Attorney Bill Morris

OTHERS PRESENT :
Planning Commissioners: Amy Morgan, Steve Jacobson, Matt Roper, Jethro Watson, Dan Johnson.
Resident: Mike Lawrence

1. WORK SESSION 5:00 P.M.
Topics to include, but are not limited to:
e Annual mandatory training:
- Open Meetings Act
- Workplace Conduct

City Attorney Bill Morris presented the annual training to the Council and Members of the Planning
Commission. The Council and Commission were given the Municipal Ethics Act and Ethics Pledge, along
with the updated Conflict of Interest Disclosure form.

e Review of Urban Chicken License Fee Analysis:
Hanson stated that a fee analysis needs to be completed before a license fee is set, per state law.
There were two options proposed for Council to review and consider.
Nish stated that he built in inspections, reviewing the license, time spent with resident, complaints,
evidence, notes, time spent on the property, among other factors.
Garrett explained the analysis process and calculations.

CC Minutes 01-07-25



46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
&3
&4
85
86
87
88
&9
90

Garrett stated that she determined what the license fee would need to be to offset the cost of the program
and regulation costs. She stated that there are several assumptions:

She stated that one of the assumptions is that there would be 12 licenses.

She stated that she believes that the costs are understated, as they were running off the assumption of best
case scenarios. She believes that the reality is that there will be nuances not built into the analysis. Garrett
stated that it is unclear how much the analysis on time will be understated. She stated that best practice to
determine what is the real cost of running a new program. She stated that Council can adopt any amount of
fee, as long as it does not exceed the maximum amount determined by the analysis.

Summary:

Garret explained the breakdown of the options.

Fixed costs are all of the costs to develop this program (program development cost).

Spread the fixed costs over five years, whereas option #2 has program development costs at one time.
She stated that the five-year allocation is $95.25, whereas the one time spreading of the fixed cost is
$478.25.

She stated that we are assuming that Nish will investigate one complaint per year. Nish stated that this is
understated, as he has received 6 complaints already. He stated that he and Garrett tried to gage as best as
they could. Every complaint would cost Nish $325.00. Garrett stated that every step was costed out as best
as they could. She stated that there is a lot more involved in complaints than there is with the initial
inspections.

Garrett stated that an option could be application with the initial inspection. Basic fee of $151.00,
allocating one complaint per year per the 12 licenses is $27.17.

Garrett stated that another option that includes the reinspection option is $355.42, noting that any
reinspection after the initial 2 would be an addition $82.00

Garrett stated that a renewal license and inspection would be $207.42 based off the same approach. She
stated that it is lower because the basic fee would be lower with reinspection.

Garrett stated that office supplies and equipment is minimal. She noted that it does not appear that our
Animal Control contract will increase with this program. Garrett stated that if anything needs to go
through the court process, it will be dealt with at the court level.

Mayor Allen stated that he believed that we would go with a one-time fee, with no renewal. Hanson stated
that this program is an enhanced level of service. Garrett stated that if they do not have a renewal concept,
the cost recovery will not be recovered as years go on. She stated that there are several considerations and
feels that a renewal concept would be the most successful for administrating the program.

Council Member Parkinson asked if the number of applications were higher than 12, would some of the
number increase as well as decrease. Garrett stated that she believes the complaint number is soft. She
stated that the cost recovery is the fixed amount, and the number of applicants may bring about some
varying changes. Garrett stated that if there is not a renewal or annual inspection, that cost would go away.
Garrett stated that a five-year time window is reasonable in recovering fixed costs.

Garrett stated that if we charge a fee, we are required to perform a comprehensive cost analysis fee.

CC Minutes 01-07-25



91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135

Council Member Zishan stated that if the program is run for three years, we would have more data to run
the analysis again and change assumptions. Hanson stated that the analysis allows Council to know the
real cost of what it takes to run the program and how the program is managed is decided by Council.
Council Member Zishan stated that he feels that the analysis is a good baseline and can be adjusted and
changed in future years once the program is underway and more data can be collected.

CC Minutes 01-07-25



136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150

151
152
153

154
155
156
157

158
159

160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
Mayor Mark C. Allen

Council Member Jill Christiansen
Council Member Zunayid Z. Zishan
Council Member Cheryl Parkinson
Council Member Jeff West — excused
Council Member Michael Thomas
Recreation Director Carlos Grava
City Code Enforcement Martin Nish
General Planner Tyler Seaman

Fire Chief Clay Peterson

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez

City Manager Tom Hanson

OTHERS PRESENT :
Amy Miller, Mike Lawrence, Nedra Seal, Ulis Gardiner, Leland Grieger

2. ROLL CALL 6:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. WELCOME

5. CONSENT ITEMS
5.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND DECEMBER 3, 2024, COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES AND DECEMBER 17, 2024 WORK SESSION MINUTES
Item 5.1 was approved by general consent.

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS

Amy Miller, representing the United Methodist Church, stated that the pantry packs for school will begin
in January. She stated that the campaign helps children with food insecurities. She stated that the “Rise
Against Hunger” event will take place on March 29" around 9:00 a.m.

Robert Worlmont stated that he is concerned about the possibility of allowing chickens within the city. He
asked how many Council Members support having chickens in their homes. He stated that he wanted to
know why we are changing from a residential community to an agricultural community. He stated that he
feels that only 10 percent of the residents want chickens within the city. He stated that there is an influx of
vermin within the city. He stated that some residents already have chickens. He stated that we are
residential and really does not want to become an agricultural city.

Council Member Zishan stated that the majority of the people may not want chickens, but they support the
right for people to have chickens. He stated that he supports the rights of people. He stated that we are the
only city in the county that does not allow backyard chickens. Council member Thomas called a point of
order stating that this comment section is for the citizens.

CC Minutes 01-07-25



182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198

199
200
201
202
203
204

205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227

Bonnie Jacobson stated that she has lived here since 1977 and did not expect it to turn into farmland. She
stated that she feels strongly that she wants to live in a residential city and not a farm.

Mike Lawrence stated that as long as someone is taking care of their animals they should be allowed. He
stated that he feels that the issues is that people do not feel that the codes are going to be enforced the way
that they should be enforced. He stated that we are “a report your neighbor type” of enforcement. He
suggested that the codes should be enforced and behavior corrected. He stated that the minimum flock size
of chickens should be three. He stated that we should get information from experts and not opinions.

Lawrence asked when the automated water metering system will come online.
Nedra Seal stated that she is concerned about the increase in hours for the code enforcement officer to
enforce the ordinance and does not want residents who do not want chickens to have to pay for it through

taxes.

Ulis Gardiner stated that he used to want chickens but has changed his mind because he has seen rats,
mice, and other rodents and feels that the city will not take care of the problems.

7. RECURRING BUSINESS

The items in this section have been presented to the City Council in previous meetings for discussion.

7.1 MOTION/ORDINANCE 25-01: APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE REPEALING AND RE-
ENACTING TITLE 10 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO BE ENTITLED
“TRANSPORTATION CODE” AND REPEALING CHAPTER 12.04

Seaman stated that the ordinance was re-worked after the Council comments at the last meeting.

Mayor Allen asked about “transportation devices”, which entails ATV’s, golf carts, electric personal
mobility device, electric bikes, electric or assisted scooters, and electric wheelchairs. He asked if there are
age restrictions listed somewhere else, as state code. Lt. Crowley stated that anything not specifically listed
in the municipal code would fall back on state code. He stated that any registered vehicles will have an age
limit of 16 years old. Seaman stated that it must be registered to be on the road legally, and the age limit is
16 years old. He stated that electric scooters do not need to be registered, however, they must follow
pedestrian code. Seaman stated that public sidewalks and roads must follow state law. Seaman stated that
vehicles and devices that are not licensed are not legal to drive on the roads.

Council Member Parkinson addressed section 10.09.040 regarding Special Parking Limitations, stating
that she felt the 2-hour parking restriction may not work for vehicles that are doing a service at a home,
such as a cement mixer or construction. Seaman stated that commercial vehicles have been addressed.
Council Member Parkinson stated that it could take a cement mixer or landscaping company more than 2
hours to complete a job and feels that it may be an issue. Seaman stated that the 2 hours is subjective.
Council Member Parkinson brought up another situation that may take more than 2 hours and asked if we
really need a 2-hour limit listed, which may discourage businesses from working in the Terrace. Seaman
stated that this is covered 10.09.040 (3), stating that vehicles are fine to be there during the time that they
are working. He stated that if someone is actively engaged working on something at a house, they are
permitted to be parked on the street longer than the 2 hours, as not every situation is one size fits all. He

CC Minutes 01-07-25



228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273

stated that the ordinance allows a city employee, or law enforcement officer to make a determination and
judgement call. Lt. Crowley stated that the ordinance morphed into a transportation ordinance. He stated
that his role was to ensure that law enforcement would be able to enforce the ordinance. He stated that
upon further review, he realized that there are things in “Special Devices” that may need extra looking
into, with the reason being that the state code is more specific concerning golf carts and other issues.
Mayor Allen stated that Council could approve the ordinance and come back to section 10.05.040
addressing special devices.

Hanson stated that the city could run into liability issues if we allow golf carts on the street that is not set
up for safety or the road. He stated that Council could simply not allow golf carts on the road within the
ordinance.

Council Member Christiansen stated that we are limiting people who work with vehicles that are over one
ton. She stated that she understands the need to be tight but feels that we are still making it very difficult
for people who need their vehicle. She stated that she is not comfortable approving the ordinance until this
is fixed. She stated that she does not think that we are on the right track for solving the problem. Seaman
stated that it is a hard issue. He stated that there are challenges with our fire engines not being able to pass
through some of the roads. He stated that this is alarming to him. Council Member Christiansen stated that
there has to be a work- around for this problem. She stated that she does agree that recreational vehicles do
not belong parked on the road. She stated that not allowing vehicles that are needed for someone’s
livelihood is not right.

Seaman stated that he has investigated the issue in the past. He stated that the current ordinance is hard to
enforce. Seaman stated that the proposed ordinance is very hard lined. Council Member Christiansen
stated that the ordinance cannot be open to interpretation. Council Member Parkinson stated that we
cannot have loopholes that code enforcement cannot enforce.

Council Member Christiansen stated that a lot of one-ton work trucks with the work boxes within the city,
and believes that we cannot tell them now that they are not allowed to be parked on the road and we do not
allow them to expand their driveway. Hanson stated that it is to protect the greater good of the safety of the
city, and we are not discriminating against one business or another. Hanson stated that we would be happy
to consider a ground that works for balancing the need of transportation on the roads and helping someone
who is trying to make a living.

Council Member Parkinson stated that she has a concern about the winter parking section. She stated that
we have had a mild December. She wondered if there is another way of looking at the timeframe so that
there is more accessibility to parking on the road, suggesting a certain timeframe before a storm. Council
Member Parkinson wondered if we could adjust part of the ordinance if we are not going to be having
snowstorms as we have in the past. Council Member Parkinson stated that ordinances are there to protect
citizens and help with the ease of taking care of citizens. She suggested tabling the vote so that there could
be a discussion concerning adjusting several of the items spoken about tonight.

Mayor Allen stated that he appreciates the way that the city has handled winter parking this year. He stated
that we have to have this ordinance in place, stating past experiences. He stated that an ordinance has to be
in place with some teeth in it. He stated that we haven’t been that hard on targeting vehicles. Lt. Crowley
stated that orange tags have been handed out since October notifying residents. Lt. Crowley stated that
enforcement has been lessened with the milder weather this year. Mayor Allen stated that we have learned

from experience that people will not check to see if a storm is coming to move their vehicle.
CC Minutes 01-07-25



274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320

Lt. Crowley stated that the first objective is to get the vehicle moved, noting that they go through a
checklist of items to locate the owner. He stated that there were over 20 citations, contacts, and impounds
over a couple of hours this past Saturday during the storm. Hanson stated that they look for reasonable
remedies before the vehicles are impounded.

Hanson strongly encouraged Council to go for a ride along with Public Works when there is a storm so
that they can see the limitations that they have. Council Member Parkinson stated that she appreciates
hearing from the people that have specific contact with the issue, as the information is valuable.

Mayor Allen stated that he would like the ordinance to come back to Council by February 18" if Council
decides to table the item to work on issues.

Council Member Thomas stated that a lot of people bring their recreational vehicles to their home at night
to load it and leave in the morning. He stated that he has a concern about not allowing overnight parking.
Hanson stated that a parameter could be built into the ordinance. Council Member Parkinson stated that if
we are going to have wiggle room in an ordinance it should be written within the ordinance. Council
decided that a 24 hour time limit for overnight parking of Recreational Vehicles (RV) should be allowed.

The items to be reviewed and revised include:

Transportation Devices (10.05.040) to address golf carts and special devices. State code should be
referenced.

Size or Weight Restrictions (10.03.060) of vehicles/trailers that can be allowed to park on the road.
Overnight Parking restrictions on Recreational Vehicles. It was decided to allow RV parking for loading
over a 24 hour period.

Motion by Council Member Parkinson
Seconded by Council Member Zishan
To table the ordinance until February 18t
As the adjustments discussed are made
And brought back to Council
Approved unanimously (4-0)

7.2 DISCUSSION/ACTION: DISCUSSION OF ORDINANCE 25-02 ADOPTING CHAPTER
17.86 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING URBAN CHICKENS

Mayor Allen read the 17.86.040 “Regulations” section of the ordinance regarding setbacks. Council decided that
number 5 (e.) regarding the 15 foot setback regulation when using a heating device was redundant and should be
removed.

Council Member Parkinson stated that one- time license and never having a follow up is not a good practice. She
stated that she would approve the recommendation in the application section to have a yearly inspection to make
sure that properties are in compliance and being appropriately handled. She suggested adding the follow up
inspections into the application section of the ordinance. Council Member Zishan stated that he feels that that would
add more labor time to staff. Council Member Christiansen stated that it is not right to assume that the people who
have chickens will not take care of the chickens and maintain the safety and well-being of the chickens. She
suggested maybe having a reinspection after a number of years if there are complaints. Council Member
Christiansen stated that she feels that an annual inspection is more than we need to subject our citizens to. Nish
stated that keeping the pen clean would cut down on the rodents and keep the complaints down and feels that it
would be a quick inspection.

CC Minutes 01-07-25



321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368

Mayor Allen stated that if we mandate that we would have to mandate a renewal fee if we mandate an annual
reinspection, and stated that he is not sure if he is in favor of a renewal fee.

Council Member Thomas stated that he is in favor for the renewal fee and to reinspect every two years. He stated
that he does not agree with a onetime fee and then you are done. Council Member Zishan stated that if we are going
to go back every two years, we should lower the fee to 10 dollars. Council Member Parkinson agreed with the two-
year renewal fee. Mayor Allen stated that if we are going to do inspections, we need an inspection fee.

Mayor Allen asked if Council is ok with the limits of the maximum chickens as 2, 4 , an 6 chickens. Council
Member Thomas stated that he agrees that chickens are social animals and the minimum should be 3 chickens. He
stated that he feels that the maximum should only be 4, noting that we do not need to go up to 6 chickens. He stated
that they are social animals and if it is done right there is always one out of rotation. Council member Christiansen
stated that one hen feeds one family member, so we should allow up to 6 chickens. It was decided by Council to
change the code to allow for 3, 4, and 6 chickens per the zoning.

Mayor Allen stated that there was a human death yesterday in Louisiana attributed to bird flu, and should we
consider that in these discussions. Council Member Christiansen stated that we have covered cleanliness in the
code.

Council Member Christiansen stated that the language of the license application needs to be brought up to code.

Council Member Zishan stated that he felt that Council had agreed on the one-time $50.00 fee before today. Council
Member Parkinson stated that the more information that is supplied helps make adjustments to the ordinance as we
go along.

7.3 DISCUSSION/ACTION: DISCUSSION OF URBAN CHICKEN LICENSING FEE

Council Member Christiansen is concerned about the hourly rate used for the analysis. Hanson stated that
the rate that we use ($55.00) is the rate assigned regardless of who will complete the work when we are in
a situation to charge for a service.

Council Member Zishan asked if the renewal fee is because Council wants to recoup costs or make sure
residents are in compliance. He stated that if it is not to recoup cost, the fee should be lower. Hanson stated
that it depends on the level of cost recovery that Council would like.

Hanson stated that Council can choose a rate that would match the cost, or one that is less. He stated that it
is Councils’ choice on how to apply the study. Hanson stated that there are some things that we do that do
not have full cost recovery. He stated that the code inspections for chickens takes Nish’s efforts away from
general services for a service that is specifically for chickens.

Council Member Parkinson stated that she feels that cost recovery is important in this case because there is
such a small segment of the city participating in this program. She noted that she wants to make sure
carelessness doesn’t come into play and make sure coops are not dilapidated. Council Member Zishan
stated that he understands that this is taking away from Nish’s work, but he noted that it is not adding
additional cost for an additional employee.

Council Member Christiansen feels that owning a chicken is a right and we should allow residents to have
the right to have chickens if they want. She stated that there is a long-term track record that urban farming
works and can be a great benefit to the communities. Council Member Christiansen stated that it is a

citizen’s right. She stated that cost recovery is not in her mind because we shouldn’t look at cost recovery
CC Minutes 01-07-25



369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416

in something that is a right.

Council Member Zishan stated that we should talk to South Ogden City since we copy them so much and see what
they are charging. He stated that the idea is to protect the people that don’t want chickens and to make it easy for
those who do want them and now it feels like punishment. He stated hat he has agreed to everything to protect those
who don’t want chickens and now we are making it hard for people who do want them. He stated that not
everything has to be business.

Council Member Thomas stated that those who want chickens need to stay up to code and pay their licensing costs.

Council Member Parkinson wanted to make sure that the many citizens who have reached out to Council know that
they are listening to them and hearing their voices. She noted that listening to them, however, listening to them
doesn’t mean we will always agree with you. She wanted the residents to know that as Council has been receiving
more and more information as they are considering this. She stated that they have been listening to input and trying
to make a decision that is beneficial to our community.

Council Member Parkinson stated that Council has been balancing individual rights with balancing the community.
She noted that individual rights take into account individual conditions that they are dealing with in their lives, what
are their desires, what is their homelife, what abilities that they have. She stated that when looking through the
community lens, one must realize that a community has special conditions. Council Member Parkinson stated that
one individual action in a community affects the entire community. She stated that Council must make decisions
based on how it will affect the community. She stated that the health and wellness of the community must be taken
into account.

Council Member Parkinson stated that Council must be civil with each other. She stated that she is concerned about
the division that is happening because of the ordinance and hopes we can all come together to help live together.

Mayor Allen stated that this was the first time Council saw the fee analysis and noted it was put together by the
financial department to ensure sure things are paid for in some way. Mayor Allen stated that they were very fair on
the numbers and noted it was a suggestion from financial people and gives them a place to start.

Mayor Allen stated that we need to get on the financial side of this with the fee schedule and timing.

Hanson stated that staff recognizes that the results of the fee study is kind of heavy, and staff is not suggesting that
we need to have full cost recovery. Hanson stated that it was a study that needed to be done when a fee is
established. He stated that the study justified any fee up to the amount.

Council Member Thomas stated that every two-year inspections meets everyone in the middle. Council
Member Zishan suggested that the license fee should be reasonable at less than $50.00 if we are going to
charge every two years. Council Member Thomas suggested a $75.00 for the first year and then $25.00
every two years after. Council Member Christiansen supports that suggestion, noting that we shouldn’t
have to subsidize. She stated that she understands the logic and feels that the $75.00 fee and $25.00 every
two years after is responsible. Council Member Thomas stated that the $75.00 initial application fee is still
a low cost for everything involved.

Council Member Zishan stated that we are subsidizing dogs as it is now. He stated that he believes the fee
schedule is a joke because we are basing everything off of assumptions, and also that the assumption is
that this will affect 12 people. He stated that we are not going to get rich off of $25.00. He suggested doing
a fee schedule analysis for dogs to see how much it costs.

Motion by Council Member Christiansen
Seconded by Council Member Thomas
To finalize the amount of any fee at the next meeting and

CC Minutes 01-07-25



417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440

441
442

443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462

That Council votes on the Urban Chicken Ordinance at the next meeting.

Motion included that the language concerning the discussion on the initial application and reinspect
every two years fee based on the city fee schedule be added to the ordinance.
Adjustments to the Urban Chicken ordinance should include the striking of the redundancy in the
setback section concerning the heater, as well as changing the number of chickens to 3,4, and 6.
Based on the changes discussed, she motioned to table both items expecting to see the
Changes at the next meeting and finalize the fee schedule at the next meeting

There was a modified motion by
Council Member Parkinson
Seconded by Council Member Thomas to
Keep the original motion and remove that we are going to
be voting on it at the next meeting, knowing that Council
will be working very diligently to do so on the 21%
Approved unanimously (4-0)

8. NEW BUSINESS

8.1 DISCUSSION/MOTION: MOTION: APPROVAL OF THE DISPOSITION OF

SURPLUS PROPERTY

Chief Peterson stated that the new engine is working and is up and running.
He stated that he has spoken to TNT Auction concerning the surplus of our old truck. He stated that we
have used the company before to surplus the equipment and sell the equipment. He stated that the
apparatus is 28 years old and we have been told that the auction price may be between $5,000-$10,000
dollars for the engine. Chief Peterson stated that fire apparatus does not hold its’ value.

Motion by Council Member Thomas
Seconded by Council Member Christiansen
To approve the disposition of surplus property
And sell the 1997 Ferrara Fire Engine at auction
Approved unanimously (4-0)

8.2 DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF THE APPLICATION AND MATCHING
FUNDS COMMITMENT FOR THE 2025 RECREATION, ARTS, MUSEUM, AND
PARKS (RAMP) GRANT FOR THE ROHMER PARK PICKLEBALL PLAZA
(PHASE 3)
Grava stated that he has new numbers for the project application after receiving new estimates and
working through financing options.
He stated that the new estimate is $ 891, 937.
He stated that we will be asking for RAMP funding of $500,000 with our participation of $391,937 based
on the engineer estimate. Grava stated that $743,281 is the project itself, with engineering contingency of
$148,646.

Grava stated that we will be using funds from the current Parks budget for the matching funds, around
$385,000 that was going towards park projects. He stated that we will also be using from savings. He
stated that the total funding for parks projects is $466.575.

CC Minutes 01-07-25



463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488

489
490

491
492
493
494

495
496
497
498
499

500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508

Grava stated that we are increasing the level of service, and $10,060 is estimated as the Operating and
Maintenance cost. Grava stated that the project could not have been completed without the RAMP funding
we have received over the years. Hanson stated that the ongoing maintenance is not budgeted. Hanson
stated that we will need to identify enhancements and find the funding sources for the costs. Hanson stated
that he wants Council to be aware that there are requirements going forward with the enhanced level of
service.

Motion by Council Member Christiansen
Seconded by Council Member Thomas
To approve the application and matching funds commitment for the
2025 RAMP grant for the Rohmer Park Pickleball Plaza (phase 3)
Approved unanimously (4-0)

8.3 DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED PLAN- CAPITAL
INVESTMENT PLAN PROJECT PRIORITIZATION

Rodriguez stated that the City is looking to apply for several CDBG grants this January, noting that part of
the ranking process relies on how the project ties into city and local region priorities and the state likes to
see the planning process for the projects. She stated that each year Staff reviews the cities five-year CDBG
plan, along with TCIP plans and fire equipment plans to prioritize and align them with our funding plans
for the match. his year we were looking to apply for the Street accessibility and safety project that ties into
the north entrance of Rohmer Park and also Playground equipment for Victory park. Rodriguez stated that
this year is the first time since 2013 that the city was not on the pre- approved LMI HUD listing that
qualifies us for application. Rodriguez explained the survey process for site specific locations. Rodriguez
stated that pending the completion and results of the surveys, the applications will be brought before
Council at the next meeting with final numbers. Staff is asking Council to approve our five-year CIP
prioritization plan for CDBG applications.

Motion by Council Member Parkinson
Seconded by Council Member Christiansen
To approve the Consolidated Capital Investment Plan
Project Prioritization for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Approved unanimously (4-0)

9. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF

Council Member Christiansen inquired on any updates from our insurance company regarding a foam
party. Hanson stated that we have spoken to insurance, and they do not love the idea. Hanson stated that
that type of event is not specifically addressed in our coverage, but he will check on it some more.

Council Member Zishan asked when the City will go live with the AMI system. Hanson stated that we
have heard from Weber Basin Water, and it should be going live at the end of the month.

Council Member Thomas stated that the snow plows did a great job.

CC Minutes 01-07-25



509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523

524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533

534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543

Mayor Allen wanted everyone to be familiar with the Weber County Crisis Response Resources number ,
which is 9-8-8. He stated that it can be used for suicidal thoughts, sudden deaths, or any type of
emergency.

Mayor Allen stated that he received information from Hill AFB concerning drones. He stated that there are
phone numbers on the email that was sent to Council that can be used to call a hotline if anyone has
questions concerning drones or activities concerning drones.

10. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS
Hanson stated that our webpage is now www.washingtonterrace.gov. He stated that our emails are now set
up to go to washingtonterrace.gov and asked Council to change their signature line on their city emails.

Hanson stated that the indoor storage units have reached out to Seaman and may begin the project soon
Seaman stated that they have bought the property next to them and will utilize the full property.

11. UPCOMING EVENTS
January 20™: City Offices closed in observance of Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday
January 21% : City Council Work Session (5:00 pm) and Council Meeting (6:00pm)
January 30™: Planning Commission Meeting (tentative) 6:00 p.m.
February 4%: City Council Work Session (5:00pm) and Council Meeting (6:00pm)
February 17%: City Offices closed in Observance of President’s Day
February 18%: City Council Work Session (5:00pm) and Council Meeting (6:00pm)

12. ADJOURN THE MEETING
Motion by Council Member Parkinson
Seconded by Council Member Thomas
To adjourn the meeting
Approved unanimously (4-0)
Time: 8:48 p.m.

Date Approved City Recorder

CC Minutes 01-07-25


http://www.washingtonterrace.gov/

City Council WCity of
Staff Report ASHINGTON 1ERRACE

Author: Carlos Grava W

Subject: 2025 Terrace Days Merchandise Presentation
Date: 01/21/2025
Type of Item: Approval

Summary Recommendation: 2025 Terrace Days Merchandise Presentation to the council.

Description: Staff will present the 2025 Terrace Days Merchandise, a T-shirt, to the council. We
will then open an online store to sell the T-shirts, promote the event, and bring the community
together.

A. Topic: 2025 Terrace Days Merchandise Presentation.

B. Background: The City used to sell Terrace Days T-shirts, which were a big hit with the
community. The last year that the T-shirts were designed and sold was 20009.

C. Analysis: After a few inquiries about the T-shirts, offering again the option to purchase a
T-shirt from Terrace Days feels like the right move to increase the sense of community
around the event and promote it within the community.

D. Fiscal Impact: There will be no negative fiscal impact on the City since the City will not
need to pay any upfront funds. The City will partner with the vendor to set up the online
store, where we will sell the T-shirts during a predetermined period. After the availability
period is closed, the vendor will produce the T-shirts and make them available for the
buyers to pick up at their physical store. After the payment for the production, online
store management, taxes, and credit card fees, the City will receive part of the sales,
which will go towards the Terrace Days operational costs.

E. Department Review: City Manager and Parks & Recreation.



CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE
ORDINANCE NO 25-02

URBAN CHICKENS

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY, UTAH,
ADOPTING CHAPTER 17.86 REGULATING URBAN CHICKENS; SEVERABILITY;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Washington Terrace (“City”) is a municipal corporation, duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of Utah;

WHEREAS, Utah Code Annotated §§ 10-8-84 and 10-8-60 allow municipalities in the State of
Utah to exercise certain police powers and nuisance abatement powers, including but not limited to
providing for safety and preservation of health, promotion of prosperity, improve community well-being,
peace and good order for the inhabitants of the City;

WHEREAS, Title 10, Chapter 9a, of the Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, enables
municipalities to regulate land use and development;

WHEREAS, there is renewed interest in raising chickens in the urban environments and the City
desires to allow for such while mitigating adverse impacts;

WHEREAS, after publication of the required notice the Planning Commission held its public
hearing on August 29,2024, to take public comment on this proposed Ordinance, and subsequently gave
its recommendation to approve this Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the City Council received the recommendation from the Planning Commission and
held its public meeting on , and desires to act on this Ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Washington Terrace as
follows:

Section 1. Repealer. Any Ordinance that conflict with this Ordinance is repealed.
Section 2. Amendment. Chapter 17.86 is hereby adopted to read as follows:

Chapter 17.86
URBAN CHICKENS

Sections:

17.86.010 Purpose.

17.86.020 Land Use Permit.
17.86.030 Application.

17.86.040 Regulations.

17.86.050 Inspection.

17.86.060 Enforcement and Appeal.



Washington Terrace, Utah Page 2
Ordinance No. 25-02

17.86.010 Purpose.

The purpose of this Chapter is to permit the keeping and/or raising of chickens in single-family dwellings as
provided in this Chapter for the sole purpose of family food production. Any chicken kept as provided in
this Chapter is not considered or otherwise deemed a household pet.

17.86.020. Land Use Permit.

Any person keeping and/or raising one or more chickens in the City shall first obtain a Land Use Permit
under this Chapter. Any Land Use Permit issued under this Chapter shall be made by application of the
property owner and continue under this Chapter for the duration of ownership upon which time any Land
Use Permit shall cease. No Land Use Permit under this Chapter shall run with the land.

17.86.030 Application.
A complete application for a Land Use Permit filed with the City under this Chapter shall include:

1. A ene-time first-year license application fee, with an every other year renewal fee and inspection, in
accordance with adoption of city fee schedule. Initial inspection and re- inspection allowed. A
re-inspection fee may apply if additional inspections are needed.

2. Property Owner Authorization and Affidavit that states: The undersigned, being duly sworn,
depose that I/we is/are the owner(s), occupant(s), applicant(s) of the property involved and that I/we
agree to abide by the provisions contained herein and acknowledges that I/we am/are responsible
to know and understand all local, state, or federal regulations related to the keeping of no more
than the number of hens allowed for by regulation 17.86.040 4(b) at the location of the property
listed in the application.

3. Applicant’s contact information, including:

a. Legal name.

b. Phone number.

c. Email

d. Other contact information as needed.

4. Address of the property where chickens are proposed to be located and proof of ownership.

5. Property is required to be in compliance with Washington Terrace City Code 8.16.030 Nuisance
Declared.

6. Site Plan showing the:

North arrow.

Building lot size in square feet.

All property boundaries.

All existing streets.

Location of all existing structures and accessory buildings on the property with accurate
square footage.

Location of proposed chicken coop and/or run and/or proposed additions to existing
accessory non-residential structures with proposed square footage.

© a0 o

=

17.86.040 Regulations.
The keeping and/or raising of one or more chickens is subject to the following regulations:
1. Compliance. Any chicken shall be kept in a manner consistent with this Chapter.
2. Family Only. Any chicken shall be kept strictly for family food production, and not for commercial
sale or personal income. No egg or meat sales whatsoever.
3. Prohibited. No roosters shall be kept, and no breeding is permitted on the property.
4. Keeping. Only chicken hens may be kept on a residential lot in accordance with the following
standards:


https://washingtonterrace.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=8.16.030_Nuisance_Declared
https://washingtonterrace.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=8.16.030_Nuisance_Declared

Washington Terrace, Utah Page 3
Ordinance No. 25-02

50 moe

Lot is owner-occupied.

Lot size. The maximum number of hens permitted is a function of the total residential lot
size as indicated below:

Under 6,000 square feet : up to

Fwo-Three.

6,000-8,000 square feet: up to Four.

Above 8,000 square feet: up to Six.

Any chicken shall be kept in one coop or one properly enclosed area/chicken run at all
times in the rear yard as depicted on an approved Site Plan.

No chicken shall be permitted to roam outside a coop or enclosed area.

A coop shall be covered, ventilated, and rodent and predator resistant.

A coop shall not be constructed of scrap or dilapidated materials.

The coop shall be built with a finished, all weather exterior material.

Any crowing hen shall be culled.

5. Setbacks. The coop or enclosure shall be located:

At least fifteen (15) feet from any primary residential dwelling.

At least twenty-five (25) feet from any primary residential dwelling on an adjoining
property.

At least ten (10) feet from any property line.

Maximum coop height is seven (7) feet, at its highest point.

6. Maintenance.

a.

Any coop and/or enclosure shall be maintained:
i. Inan orderly and sanitary condition, and in a manner that prevents a detectable
odor at the property line.

ii. Chicken feed shall be kept secure from rodents and other wildlife. Feed
containers shall be made of rodent-and predator-proof materials. Spillage and
leftover feed must be removed daily. Coops and runs are required to be kept
clean and maintained to promote chicken health, mitigate odor, and limit the
presence of rodents, insects, vermin, pests, and diseases.

Dead animals shall be immediately removed from the lot and disposed of in a lawful
dump.

Chicken manure must be placed in compost containers or in airtight containers for off-
site disposal or personal home use. No sales are permitted. No open-air storage of
manure or other by-products is permitted on the property.

Eggs that are produced by the hens are not permitted to be sold and are for family food
production of the occupants of the single-family dwelling only.

No combustible vegetation is permitted within five (5) feet of any coop. If heaters are to
be used, no growth or vegetation other than sod grass is permitted within five (5) feet of
any coop.

The area within five (5) feet of the perimeter of any coop shall be unobstructed, except the
side where a coop may be attached to an accessory building.

No coop, pen, cage, or similar structure shall exceed one hundred fifty (150) square feet
(including the coop, run, and/or enclosure).

Any chicken found at-large of the rear yard of owner’s lot is subject to being culled and/or
confiscated.



Washington Terrace, Utah Page 4
Ordinance No. 25-02

17.86.050 Inspection.

The property will be inspected upon paid application and periodically to verify compliance with this
Chapter. Upon an initial application, reinspection is required if property does not meet requirements of this
Chapter. For each reinspection, after the initial inspection and allowed re-inspection, the applicant is
subject to reinspection fee.

17.86.060 Enforcement and Appeal.

A Land Use Permit may be denied, suspended, or revoked for a violation of this Chapter. A violation of
this Chapter is subject to an infractions and a fine not to exceed $750 per violation. Appeals are subject to
this Title.

Section 3: Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any part of this
Ordinance is unconstitutional or invalid, then such portion of this Ordinance, or specific application of
this Ordinance, shall be severed from the remainder, which shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 4: Effective date. This Ordinance takes effect immediately upon passage of the city fee
schedule subject to completion of a cost analysis, and upon proper posting.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council on this day of ,20
Mayor

ATTEST:

City Recorder

RECORDED this day of ,20

PUBLISHED OR POSTED this day of ,20_

CERTIFICATE OF PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION OR POSTING
According to the provision of U.C.A. §10-3-713, 1953 as amended, I, the City Recorder of Washington
Terrace City, hereby certify that foregoing ordinance was duly passed and published, or posted at: 1)

, 2) ,and 3) on the above referenced dates.

DATE:

City Recorder



THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE
RESOLUTION 25-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, UTAH,
AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2025 CONSOLIDATED FEE SCHEDULE TO
ADOPT URBAN CHICKEN FEES; AND EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City of Washington Terrace (hereafter “City”) is a municipal
corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the state of Utah;

WHEREAS, the Utah Code §10-3-717 authorizes the City to adopt municipal service
fees by Resolution;

WHEREAS, the City is permitting the keeping of urban chickens, and, as a matter of
public health and safety, the City desires to recoup the cost for inspection of the same;

WHEREAS, the City Council is permitting the keeping and raising chickens only in
single-family dwellings;

WHEREAS, that on or about January 7, 2025, the City Council was presented an in-
depth fee analysis conducted by City staff related to the estimated financial impacts of municipal
services related to urban chickens in the City’s single-family residential areas;

WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to update its Fiscal Year 2025 Consolidated
Fee Schedule to adopt and include the municipal service fees for urban chickens as provided
herein to cover the implementing, inspection, and permitted use costs related to urban chickens;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Washington Terrace, Utah, that the Fiscal Year 2025 Consolidated Fee Schedule as attached

hereto in Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference is adopted to include Urban
Chicken Fees as set forth there.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2025.

CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE:

Roll Call Vote:

Yes No

MARK ALLEN, Mayor Council Member Christiansen o
Council Member Parkinson -

Attest: Council Member Thomas -

Council Member West
Council Member Zishan

City Recorder



Exhibit “A”

FY 2025 Consolidated Fee Schedule



	staff_report CDBG Contribution Match.pdf
	Author:  Amy Rodriguez
	Subject: CDBG Grant Applications
	Date: 01-21-2025
	Type of Item: Motion
	Summary Recommendations: Staff is requesting formal approval from Council to commit to the City contribution match for the 2025 CDBG application for two projects: Victory Park Playground Equipment Replacement, and the Street Accessibility and Safety P...

	City Council
	Staff Report




